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JACK'S CREEK,WdtonCourty. Risesjustnath
of Monroe and flows easterly, crosses the upper
tip of Morgan Cournty and empties into the
Apaacdee River. This gream was named for
Lieutenant John"Jad" Clark (sic), son d Elijah
Clarke. The yourger Clark was wounded in the
Battle of Jack's Creek against the Indians here
September 21, 178 {seealso Clarkesvill €). A stream
cdled JACKS RIVER rises in nathern Gil mer
County andflows northwesterly through Fannin
County into Tennessee

JACK'S ISLAND, WareCourty. Namedin hona
of Jadk Lee oreof the natives of the Okefenokee
Swamp.

JACK SON, CSButts County. Incorporated and

designated the murty sed, Decamber 26, 1826.

Namedin hona of Andrew Jackson (17671845
whostopped nea herefor twoweeksin 1818wvhen
enrouteto Floridatofight the Semindes. Hedrew
acdaimfrom Georgianswith hiscampaign againgt
thesefiercelndiansinthelower part of this gate,
which hedefeaed at Horseshoe Bendin Alabama.
His stopover nea Jackson was at JACKSON
SFRINGS, Jasper Courty, designated by amarker
on Georgia 1l south of Mornticdlo.

JACKSONBORO(UGH), Screven Courty.

Established asthe murty sea February 1, 1797
andincorporated asatown February 16, 17990
July 1, 1995.This former town was establi shed
by legidator Clement Lanier (seeLanier, Maomn
County). Itwaslocaed at the canter of the murty
onBeaver Dam Creek, six milesnarth of the present
county sed, Sylvania(q.v.). Wasfoundedin 1794
as a wad stop helfway between Augusta and
Savanrnah. Named for GeorgiasGovernor, General

James Jadkson (1757#1806. The town dedined
after iti nerant minister Lorenzo Dow put a aurse
ontheresidentsin 1830.It wasdedded May 11,
1847 to move the wmunty sea to Sylvania, as
Jadksonbarough was considered a town of bad
charader.

JACKSON COUNTY.CrededFebruary 11, 17%
with 337sguaremil esaqquired frompart of Franklin

Courty. Namedin hona of Genera James Jadson
(17571806 of Revolutionary fame, whowasthe
hero of the Y azoo affair when he left the United
States Senateto comehome andfight theY azoaists.
Thefirg settlement inthe ounty wasat Y amaaitah
(9q.v.). The munty sed is Jefferson (q.v.).

JACKSON LAKE.This4,750aaelakeislocated
at thejunctureof Butts, Jasper andNewtoncourties.
It was developed as a state reservoir in 1910 ly
the cnstruction d Lloyd Shoal Damontheupper
Ocmulgee River, and was named for General
Andrew Jadkson (see Jadson, Butts Courty).

JACKSON MONUMENT, Terrell Courty.
Located fivemil es uth of Dawson. Waseredaed
to the hona of Andrew Jadkson, who was the
seventh president of the United States (see Jackson,
Butts Courty).

JACKSON'S FOLL Y, CharltonCourty. A canal

whichisoneof thethree etrancesto Okefenokee
Swamp. Named after Captain Henry Jackson (1845
1895, who attempted to get wedthy by draining
theswampin arder to cut theval uabletimber here.

Now cdled SUWANNEE CANAL, it wasdugin
1891 ketween the St. Marys River to the alge of

the swamp. See Camp Cornelia.

JACKSON SPRINGS, Jasper Courty. SeeJadkson,
Butts Courty.

JACKSON'S TRAIL.AlsocdledtheSEMINOLE
WAR PATH, it was made by Colonel Arthur P.
Hayneof Tennesseein 181, und ordersof Genera
Andrew Jadkson It ranfromMarionCourty through
Chattahoochee Stewart and Randd ph courties.

JACK SONVILLE , Tefar Courty. Settledin 1807
and incorporated Decanber 14, 1815 Was the
courty sea until it wasmovedtoMcRaein 1871.
Named for "Old Hickory" Andrew Jadkson,who
defeded the British at New Orleansin 1815 the
same yea this town was chartered. Ancther
JACKSONVILLE isa ommunity in TownsCounty,
just south o Y ourg Harris. Itisna knownfor which
Jadkson it was named.

JAKIN, Early Courty. Incorporated as a town
Decamber 16, 1895First settledin 1817 thepost
officewasopenedin 1891 Named by aformer mgjor
in the Confederate Army, J. Morris Bivings.

JAMAICA, GlynnCourty. Thisformer comnunity
waslocaed sixteen mil esnarthwest of Brunswick,
andwasnamed after Jamaica, New Y ork, thehome
of aninvestor in the Atlantic Coastli ne Rail road.
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JAMES, JonesCourty. Locaed abou fivemiles
southeast of Gray, thiswasoriginaly aCreek Indan
settlement. Itwasnamed by officialsof the Georgia
Railroad for Lemuel Phato James, Sr., a bridge
builder for therail road who settled here. JAMES
was also the original name of GRAY (q.v.).

JAMESTOWN, Chattahoachee County. This
former community was locaed seven miles
southwest of Cusseta. It was named for JohnA.
Jameswhowasoversee of construction d theroad
to Cussta. Corpaora JohnA. James, CSA of this
family died in the battle of Chickamauga.

JARRELL PLANTATION STATE HISTORIC
SITE, JonesCourty. Theonly working plantation
in Georgia that has been preserved as when
established. Wasfirst settledin 1847 ly JohnJarrell
whoseresdencestill stands. Thenewest residence
adjacent tothesitewasbuiltin 1920andisocauped
by agred-grandson d JohnJarrell.

JASPER, CS Rckens County. Incorporated asa
town Decenber 22, 1857.Named in hona of
Sergeant Jasper (see Jasper Courty).

JASPER COUNTY. Creded Decamber 10, 180
with 373squaremil estaken frompart of Baldwin
Courty. Whenfirst formed, the murty wasnamed
RANDOLPH COUNTY after U.S. Congressman
JohnRanddph (17731833 of Virginia, thestate
fromwhichthe ealy settlersherehad come. Because
of Randdph'soppasitionto the War of 1812 the
courty changeditsnamein 18120 hona Sergeant
Willi am Jasper (17501779 of South Carolina,
whofell mortal y wounced at thesiegeof Savannah
inthe Revolution. The murty sed is Morticdlo
(gv.). A gatuetothehona of Willi am Jasper stands
at Madison Square, Savannah. See also Jasper

Spring.

JASPER SPRING, ChathamCourty. This gring
is onthe alge of Savannah nea Augusta Road,
where Sergeants Jasper andNewtonrescued some
American prisonersduringthe Revolution. Seealso
Jasper Courty and Newton County.
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JAY BIRD SPRINGS, DodgeCourty. Theplace
islocated 14 mil es outh of Eastman andwasfirst
settledinealy 1900 ly T. A. McMill an. Folklore
relatesthat theplacewasnamed after aspring here
that hededtheinjuredleg of ablack manwhowas
led to the placeby a Jay Bird.

JEFF DAVIS COUNTY. Creaed August 18,
1905with 331square mil esformed from parts of
ApplingandCoffee ourties. Namedfor Jefferson
Davis(1808-1889, president of the Confederacy.
The murty sea isHazlehurst (q.v.).

JEFFERSON DAVIS MEMORIAL STATE
PARK, Irwin Courty. Locaed two miles north
of Irwinvill e, with Davis bust locaed at the spot
where he was ceptured May 16, 1865.

JEFFERSON, CSJadcksonCourty. Incorporated
asatownand cesignated the courty sea November
24,1806.Thistownwasestablishedin 1805t the
ste of a previous Indian settlement caled
THOMOCOGGAN. Thefirst post officewascdl ed
JACKSONCOURT HOUSE January 1, 18 and
the placewas cdled JEFFERSONVILLE. The
Comrmunity namewaschanged to JEFFERSONTON
October 1, 1810andfinally to Jeff erson June 30,
1824. Was named for Thomas Jefferson (see
JeffersonCourty). Thefirst useof ether for surgery
occurred hereMarch 30, 1844 seel ong Courty).

JEFFERSON COUNTY. Creaed February 20,
1796with 532square mil estakenfromBurke and
Warren courties. Named for Thomas Jefferson
(17431829 of Virginia, author of theDedaration
of Independence, apostle of agrarian democragy,



Jeff erson Hall

andthe third president of the United States. The
courty sea isLouisville (q.v.).

JEFFERSON HALL, GreeneCourty. Waslocaed
nine miles east of Greensboro, and ramed for
Thomas Jefferson (see Jefferson Courty).
Establi shed by Lemuel Greene, who bult aGreek
Revival house here abou 1830,after which this
became a thriving community when it was made
arail roadterminusabout 1838 Whentheroad was
later extended to Augusta, it spelled the dedine
of thevill age, urtil finaly only the Greenehouse
remained.

JEFFERSONTON, Camden Courty. Laid ou
in 1800 orahigh Kuff onthe south sideof the Satila
River. The cournty sea was moved here from S.
Marys in 1801.After many yeas the sea was
returned to St. Marys, becaise the inhabitants
suff ered chillsandfevers, asthisplacewasfound
tobeunhedthy. Still existent isthe JEFFERSON
CHURCH, locaed abou 3 1/2 miles west of
Woodhne.

JEFFERSONVILLE, CS Twiggs Courty.
Incorporated asatown November 29, 1901 The
ealy community here was known as RAIN'S
STORE, with apost office gproved September
1828.Thename of thetownwaschangedin 184
to hona the Jeff erson family, leaders during the
ealy development of the curty. Thisbecanethe
courty seat whenit wasmoved herefromMarion
(gv.)in 1868.

JEKYLL ISLAND,GlynnCourty.Pronourced
"Jedk'-el," or ascdl ed by coastal folk, "Jadk'-el."
This island was originally cdled OSFO by the
Indians, while the Spanish cdled it GUALD-
AQUINI, GUALEQUINI and OBALDAQUINI.
TheFrench namedit ISLE DE LA SOMME (and
the Satill a River they cdled the Somme). Some
of the ealy English names of this island were
JECKEL, JEEKEL, JEKIL andJEKYL. It'sbeen
speaulated that the name originated from a
Frenchman named Jocqueswho hed dedingswith
thepiratesontheidland; suppasedly thenamewas
corrupted from JACQUES ISLAND to JAKE'S
ISLE andthento JAKY L. Theidandwasinredity
named in January of 1734 by General James E.
Oglethorpein hona of Sir Joseph Jekyll, (1663
1739, alawyer andstatesman who helpedfinance
the mlonia venturewith agift of £500.The Spanish
first came @out 1556 and maintained a Jesuit
misgon here until abou 1742.In 1791 four
Frenchmen bouwght the island and it was owned
by the du Bignon family until 1886 (see also
DubignorsCreek). Major Willi anHortonwasthe
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first Englishmanto settlehere. Heraised hopsand
establi shed abrewery to suppdy thecommunity of
Frederica(q.v.) on reaby St. Simonsidand.Jekyll
was a millionaires playgroundand retrea from
1888 to 1942, with names like Astor, Morgan,
Pulit zer, Rockefell er andV anderbilt maintaining
cottages here. It was purchased by the State of
Georgiain 1947for $675,000 or the aedion o
JEKYLL ISLAND STATEPARK,whichincludes
11,000aaesof tropicd beauty, with ten mil es of
white sandy bead. JEKYLL POINT isthelower
end d Jekyll 1slandwhichextendsinto St. Andrew
Sound JEKYLL RIVER (or CREEK) isthename
of the dhannel separating the island from the
mainland, andis part of the Atlantic Intracoastal
Waterway (q.v.). JEKYLL SOUNDisat themouth
of the Little Satill a River.

JENKINS, Columbia Courty. Thiswasthefirst
depot inthe Martinez-Evans area and was named
for Mrs. Sarah Jenkins, alarge landowner here.

JENKINSBURG, ButtsCourty. Incorporated as
atown October 24, 18®. Named in hona of the
Jenkinsfamily, ealy settlershere. In 1881Willi am
Jenkinshad deeded astrip of landfor the Southern
Railroad to passthrough the town.

JENKINS COUNTY. Creaed August 17, 1905
with 351squaremil estaken from Bull och, Burke,

Emanud andScreven courties. Namedfor Georgias

governor, Charles Jones Jenkins (18051883), a
native of South Carolina, who was author of the

famous Georgia Platform (1850. The name

originally propaosed for this courty was "Dixie"

(9.v.). Representative Joe Hill Hall from Bibb

County was the one who suggested the name for

the wunty. The couny sea is Millen (q.v.).

JENKINS STATION, Montgomery Courty.
Namedfor WarrenT. Jenkins, thefirst postmaster
whenthepost officeopened August 15, 1890The
name of theplacewaslater changedto VIDALIA

(V).

JENKINSVILLE, Pike Courty. This former
community waslocated at or nea the present town
of Molena, andwasnamedfor thepionee settlers
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here. In 1882hepostmaster was Mrs.M.A. Jenkins,
and N.S. Jenkins ran the general store.

JENNIE, Evans Courty. The postmaster (1892
1905 wasW. E. Gricewho hed a store, sawmill

and cotton gin here. He named the placefor his
daughter, Mrs. Dave Bradley.

JEROME, Head Courty. JamesBonner beli eved
that thisformer community was probably named
after postmaster Jerome Ridley.

JERSEY, WaltonCounty. Incorporated asatown

August 24, 1905The original name of the place
wasCENTERVILLE, becauseit was ssvenmil es
from Monroe, from Covington and from Social

Circle. The present name of thiscommunity was
adopted after alocd planter proudy imported a
Jersey bull.

JESUP, CSWayneCourty. Pronourced " Jess-up.”
Incorporated asatown October 24, 1870Named
for General Thomas Sidney Jesup(17881860) of
theU.S. Army, whorendered va uableserviceduring
theCreek War of 1836 The courty sea wasmoved
here from Waynesvill e (q.v.).

JEWELL (S), Hancock County. Locaed onthe
OgeedteeRiver, 13mil eseast of SpartaonGeorgia
highway 16. It was first known as ROCK
FACTORY andthencdled SHIVERS(onal718
map), named after Willi am Shivers who bult a
cottonmill ontheriver. Ultimately it was named
for Daniel A. Jewell, who came from New
Hampshirein 1856and puchased themill which
he operated urtil 1883.

JEWTOWN, Glynn Courty. Located east of
GascoigneBluff onthesouthwestend d St. Simons
Island. Named after a Jewish merchant, a Mr.
Levinson,who orceowned astorehere. Hewished
to cdl the ommunity LEVINSONTON, bu the
Negroes of the vicinity insisted on cdling it
"Jewtown."

JOBLEY(S) CREEK, BurkeCourty. Atiny strean
whichflowsnortherly into the Savannah River nea
Girard.Itwasfirst cdled TOBLER CREEK (g.v.),
then TOBLAR and JOBBLER before finaly
evolving to the present name.

JOEL, Carroll Courty. An dd community and
post officelocated 14mil es outhwest of Carrollton.
In 1882hepostmaster wasJod F. Yates. Anealier
name of the ommunity was SPFENCER.

JOETOWN, MamnCounty. Thiswastheoriginal
settlement at thesite of thepresent IDEAL (q.v.).
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Johrstonvill e

Violet Moore said it was named for asolid dd
citizen here, Mr. J.C. "Joe" Tarrer.

JOHN MARSHALL L AW SCHOOL,Atlanta
Includescoll egesof Liberal ArtsandLaw. Named
after JohnMarshall (17551835, Americanjurist
and statesman, fourth chief justice of the United
States, whowascreditedwith establi shingthepower
and prestige of the Supreme Court. See also
Marshallvill e.

JOHN'S NEGRO ISLAND, Ware Courty.
Located in the Okefenokee Swamp above the
northeast tip of Bladkjad Island. A thief stole a
Negro slave from J.J. Johrs of Charlton Courty
and hid him onthisisland in dlavery times.

JOHNSON COUNTY. Creded Decanber 11,
1858with 313square mil estaken from Emanuel,
Laurens and Washington courties. Named for
Georgia'sgovernor, Herschel Vespasian Johnson
(18121880, who was a U.S. senator, and was
candidate for vice president on the ticket with
Stephen A. Douglasin 1860.The murty sed is
Wrightsvill e (q.v.).

JOHNSON ISLANDS, HarrisCourty. Locaed
eight mil esbel ow West Point onthe Chattahoachee
River. Named for Benjamin Johnson(1807%1882),
who purchased the isands from William A.
Callaway in 1851.

JOHNSTON STATION, LongCounty. Theealy
name of LUDOWICI (g.v.), andwas o cdled as
Allen Johrston avnedall thelandwherethe present
townislocated. Inthe 1880swhen Johrston Station
had about 200 inhabitants, a Mr. T.F. Johnston
operated a general store here.

JOHNSTONVILLE , Lamar Courty. Locaedfour
milesnortheast of Barnesvill e. Establishedin 1821
thiscommunity wasthefirst courty seat of Mornroe
County. Mrs. Lambdin said it was named for the
Thomas Johrston family, thowght to be the first
settlers here, while Winters reportsthat the first
settler was John Johrston who came from South
Carolina. The Mornroe murty sed was moved to
Forsythin 1823.
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JOHNTOWN, Dawson Courty. A former
community locaed 13 miles northwest of
Dawsonvill eonGeorgia52. Thepostmaster inthe
1880swas John S. Holden.

JOHNTOWN, JacksonCourty. TheNegrosedion
of Harmony Grovewas © named after lotswere
sold by JohnRittman, JohnA. Willi ford and Johrson
Sanders.

JOHN W. TANNER STATE PARK, Carrall
Courty. Locaed six mil eswest of Carrollton.This
128aae park was aayuired by the statein 1971
andincludesa1,000foot white sand beach ona
27-aaelake. Itwasformerly aprivateresort cdled
TANNER'SBEACHRECREATION AREA, which
was founded by JohnTanner.

JOLLY, Pike Courty. A stop onthe Southern
Railway 3 1/2 mil es northwest of Zebulon. The
original community was cdled TRAVELERS
REST, asit wasarest stopfor ealy wagontrain
drivers. Whentherail road camethrough alaborer
suggested the new name because of thegood humor
of the inhabitants.

JONES, Mclintosh Courty. A community in the
northernsedion d the curty. Wasoriginaly cdled
JONESVILLE, afteritsfirst settler, Samuel Jones.

JONESBORO, CSClaytonCourty. Settled about
1843,and incorporated as atown Deceamber 13,
1859 Cdlled LEAKSVILLE (g.v.) until therail road
came through; it was then hamed JONESBOR-
OUGH for Captain Samuel G. Jones (father of
Alabama's governor, Thomas G. Jones), a avil
enginea whosurveyedfor the Central of Georgia
Railroad here. Inthe Civil War, Atlantafell after
the last rail li ne to the dty was cut off with the
cgptureof Jonesboro by Unionforces September
1, 1864.

JONES COUNTY.CreaedDecember 10,1807
with 402sgquaremil estaken frompart of Baldwin
County. Namedfor JamesJones (17691801 who
studiedlaw in Savannah,whobecane alegislator
at the age of 23, was a U.S. Congressnan, and
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served Georgiawell before hisealy deah. Heis
buriedin Washington's Arlington Cemetery. The
courty sea isGray (q.v.).

JONES CROSS NG, LowndesCourty. Settled
by Mr. FrancisJonesinthe ealy 1800s. Thename
of the ommunity waslater changedto KINDER-
LOU (q.v.).

JONES CROSS ROAD S HarrisCourty. Formerly
cdled PAULINA post office the community is
locaed ninemil eseast of West Point. Named after
ealy landowners, Christopher Columbus Jones
and his osn Monroe Jones.

JORDON, Pike County. Waslocated nine miles
southeast of Zebulon. Named for the post office
and general store of Henry G. Jordon.

JOSEPH B. MERCER BRIDGE,GlynnCourty.
A bridge aosdng the Turtle River on Georgia
highway 303 nathwest of Brunswick. NamedMarch
31,1965nhona of Dr. Mercer (1925¢.1965 who
was a physician and mayor of Brunswick.

JOSEPH'S TOWN, Chatham Courty. Thisdead
town was locaed four mil es below the mouth of
Abercorn Creek onthe Savannah River at Bladk
Swamp. Settled about 1733 by two Scotchmenand
thirty servants. They soonleft after some of their
numbers died of malaria. The British attacked
Genera Moultrie herein 1799.

JOT 'EM DOWN STORE, PierceCounty. A
community locaed three miles northeast of
Bladkshea, and has awhimsicd name invented
by an ealy store owner. Therewasastore cdled
SMITH'SJOT 'EM DOWN STORE inDoctortown,
WayneCourty, andadsoaJOT 'EM DOWN ROAD,
whichisathreemilestretch of roadthat runs outh
of Chestateein Forsyth Courty.

JOSEPH VANN HIGHWAY ,GordonandMurray
Courties. State Route 225through Spring Place
wasnamed November 3, 19550 hona Chief Vann
(see Vann).

JUG TAVERN, Barrow Courty. Incorporated
asatownDecanber 24, 1884 Thiswasthe ealier
nameof WINDER (g.v.), under which nameit was
reincorporated Decamber 20, 18931t wasclaimed
that atract of land herewascleaed by settler Alanzo
Draper intheshapeof ajug, which gaveit thisname.
Other versions of how the ealy community was
named relate that it was after atavern herewhich
sold whiskey by the jugfull, or because this was
aplacewherejugsweremanufadured nea atavern.
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JUGTOWN, PikeCounty. Thisformer community,
located ei ght miles south of Zebulon, was named
for afamily of potterswho madejugsand potshere
for over a century from native clay.

JULIETTE, Monroe County. This town was
originally calledICEBERG or BROWNSVILLE.
It wasnamed for Juli ette M cCracken, whosefather
wasthe engineer who supervised thegradingand
laying of thetracksthrough herein 1882. Theplace
declined with the closing of the Juliette Milling
Company in 1957. Thislocationwasused for the
filming of themovie, "Fried Green Tomatoes" in
1991. Ontheoppositesideof theOcmulgeeRiver
isthe larger town of East Juliette (q.v.).

JUNCTION CITY, Tabot County. Incorporated
asatown August 21, 1906. Thereasonfor thisname
isbecauseit wasestablished at thejunction of the
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Central of Georgiaand Talbottonrailroads, aswell
as the junction of the Atlantic Coast Line and
Central of Georgiatracks.

JUNIPER, on the border of Marion and Talbot
Counties. The name of thiscommunity isderived
fromthe stream onwhichitislocated, JUNIPER
CREEK, which has aso been called UPATOY
CREEK.

JUNO, Dawson County. Thispost officeis(1974)
inthehomeof postmaster, MissRuth Harben, eight
miles south of Dawsonville. She was appointed
April 8, 1940, replacing her mother who had served
twenty years. Her grandfather, Z.C. Payne was
postmaster in 1887. She has heard it said that the
nameisfrom Juno of Roman mythol ogy, whowas
the consort of Jupiter.



